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Chairman’s Statement
FEWHRE

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am glad to present the
unaudited interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the six-month ended 30 June 2015. The Group’s
consolidated net profit attributable to shareholders for the reporting
period increased by 3.2% to HK$23.3 million (2014: HK$22.6 million). The
basic earnings per share was 9.64 HK cents (2014: 9.37 HK cents) or an
increase of 2.9% compared with the same period last year.

The Group’s overall revenue was HK$106.8 million (2014: HK$103.9
million), representing a growth of 2.8% over the same period last year and
the overall gross profit also increased by 3.1% to HK$57.9 million.

During the reporting period, the Group generated net cash inflows of
HK$12.6 million from its operating activities and continuously maintained
robust liquidity position. In view of the sustained healthy financial
position, the Board recommended the distribution of an interim dividend
of 7 HK cents (2014: 7 HK cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW
Application Software

Building on existing customer base with recurring business and ongoing
maintenance and service incomes, the Group’s Application Software™
business managed to deliver a steady performance in the first half of 2015.
In order to accelerate the future growth, the Group had been deployed
increasing resources in research and development (“R&D") for software
products enhancement and platforms integration during the reporting
period. While the increased R&D costs had adversely impacted the profit
contributions of the related businesses, the management believes that
the enriched products features and integrated platforms will contribute
to the long-term profit growth.

While the revenue contributions of the Group’s HRM[, EIM™" and EPM™
businesses were stably maintained during the reporting period, the Group
continued to expand its customer base with prestigious clients in various
industries, such as a major property developer in the region, a five-star
hotel group and an organization providing clearing and settlements
services to major financial institutions in Hong Kong.
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)
FERSE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Application Software (continued)

On top of organic growth, in February 2015, the Group had taken steps
forward to expand its Application Software business by acquiring the
entire issued shares of Sanyo Extended System Services Limited (“Sanyo
Extended”), a well-established ERM!"! solutions company in Hong Kong
who is specialized in point-of-sale and related software and services. The
acquisition strengthened both the resources and product offerings of the
Group. The management is also contented to see the smooth integrations
of the teams and foreseen more synergy effects would be generated.

The management forecasted the market demands for the Group’s
software products will be strong in the foreseeable future. The Group had
been developing its next generation enterprise application platform that
allows various product suites to be integrated and configured to cater for
different customers’ requirements, to cope with multiple-user interfaces
including mobile devices and to be delivered on-premises and on cloud.
The management envisaged that solutions built on such platform would
meet the upcoming market demands and provide further expansion
opportunities to the Group.

e-Service and related business

The expiration of the partnership agreements with some trade
associations for paper-to-electronic conversion service (“PCS”) last year
had caused a material decrease in revenue of the Group’s GETS®? business
during the reporting period. Despite the downturn of revenue, the
Group's establishment of the 12 PCS outlets through a partnership with
a locally listed printing business group had functioned well and became
one of the major income sources of PCS revenue. In addition, the Group
had also launched more customer-oriented services plans and enhanced
its online services to cater for the users with diverse preferences.

The Group’s BPOB! business remained stable during the reporting period.
The management is delighted to see the Group had secured to renew a
multi-year BPO contract with a leading trade promotion organization in
Hong Kong.

Solutions and Integration Services

Leveraged on improved domain expertise and delivery proficiency, the
Group'’s Solutions Services™ business managed to deliver a result with
double-digit growth in the first half of 2015.

The business continued receiving material IT solutions and service
orders from various government departments of HKSAR and commercial
conglomerates. The management expected the market demands for
solution services based on the latest technologies in the area of mobility
and cloud computing will be solid for the rest of the year.

Building on a streamline structure, the Group's Integration Services®
business managed to deliver an improved result during the period under
review.
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)
FERE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Investments

The Group's investments segment recorded a segment result of HK$4.5
million (2014: HK$8.9 million). The decreased segment result is mainly
caused by the decrement of fair value gain of the investment properties
held.

PROSPECT

The management is cautiously optimistic on the Group’s overall
performance for the remaining year. Building on top of its strong
customer base which will continue to generate recurring businesses
and ongoing services incomes, the Group will continue to invest in the
software product R&D and expand the related markets. Last but not least,
the Group will not slow down in searching for any suitable acquisition
opportunities in the region to accelerate the business development.

Footnotes:

o The Group's Application Services business engages in the provision of
application software and e-business services for enterprises including
(i) the provision of enterprise application software with implementation
and ongoing support services for Human Resource Management (“HRM"),
Enterprise Procurement Management (“EPM”), Enterprise Information
Management (“EIM”) and Enterprise Retail Management (“ERM”) (collectively
the “Application Software”); and (ii) the Government Electronic Trading
Services (“GETS”), cloud services, business process outsourcing (“BPO")
services and other related value added services (collectively the “e-Service
and related business”).

2 Since 2004, the Group has been granted a license (the “GETS License”) from
the Government for the provision of front-end Government Electronics
Trading Services for processing certain official trade-related documents. The
Group’s GETS License was renewed in 2009 for operation of additional seven
years until the end of 2016.

Bl The Group’s BPO business comprises the provision of services for the
operations and support of specific business functions or processes of
customers.

1 The Group's Solutions Services business includes (i) Development Services

for the provision of IT solutions implementation and application software
development; and (ii) Managed Services for the provision of IT and related
operation/infrastructure outsourcing services.

1) The Group's Integration Services business covers the provision of IT systems
and network infrastructure with related design, implementation and on-
going support services.
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)
FERSE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's turnover for the reporting period slightly increased by 2.8%
to HK$106.8 million (2014: HK$103.9 million). The increase in revenue
was mainly due to the contribution from the Group’s Solutions Services
business during the reporting period.

Gross profit

The Group’s gross profit for the reporting period increased by 3.1% to
HK$57.9 million (2014: HK$56.1 million) while the overall gross profit
margin was stably maintained at 54.2% (2014: 54.0%).

Non-operating incomes and gains, net (included other incomes and
gains, net, foreign exchange differences, net and fair value gains/
(losses), net)

Non-operating incomes and gains (included other incomes and gains,
net, foreign exchange differences, net, and fair value gains/(losses), net)
recorded an increase of 25.9% to HK$8.3 million (2014: HK$6.6 million).
The increase was mainly due to a mixed result of the followings.

Foreign exchange differences, net

The foreign exchange loss was significantly reduced to HK$8,000 (2014:
HK$5.4 million) as the exchange rate of Renminbi was less fluctuated
during the reporting period.

Fair value gain on investment properties

The continuous appreciation in the investment properties held by
the Group attributed to the fair value gain of HK$2.2 million on the
investment properties, however the gain was 69.1% or HK$4.9 million
lower than the same period last year.

Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses kept constant from same
period last year.

The Group’s general and administrative expenses increased due to the

consolidation of expenses of newly acquired ERM business from February
2015.
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)
FERE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Income tax expense

Income tax expense increased by 39.2% to HK$3.3 million as the assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax had been increased in current
reporting period. The tax charge at the Group's effective tax rate was
around 12.3% in 2015, comparing with 9.4% in 2014. The effective tax
rate was lower than the Hong Kong statutory profits tax rate because
part of the income and gains, including dividend, bank interest incomes
generated in Hong Kong and fair value gain arising from the revaluation
of investment properties located in Hong Kong, were not subject to the
Hong Kong profits tax.

Net profit

Profit for the period attributable to shareholders increased 3.2% to
HK$23.3 million (2014: HK$22.6 million) while the net profit margin (profit
for the period attributable to shareholders divided by revenue) was
maintained at 21.8% (2014: 21.7%).

Non-Current Assets

The Group’s non-current assets as at 30 June 2015 went up to HK$130.3
million from HK$106.5 million as at 31 December 2014. The change was
mainly attributable to the recognition of a goodwill and an intangible asset
arising from the acquisition of Sanyo Extended in early 2015.

The Group reviewed and considered no impairment indication to the
carrying value of goodwill during the period under review.

Current Assets

The Group’s current assets as at 30 June 2015 increased slightly to
HK$424.8 million from HK$416.1 million as at 31 December 2014. The
change represented the net results of (i) the decrease in cash and cash
equivalents due to the distribution of 2014 special and final dividends and
progress payment for the acquisition of Sanyo Extended; (ii) the increase
in trade receivables due to a multi-million billing issued to a government
department of HKSAR in late June for some ongoing maintenance
services to be provided.

The Group maintains strict control over its outstanding trade receivables
and considered that the trade receivables (net of impairment provision)
were all recoverable in the foreseeable future.
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Current Liabilities

The Group's current liabilities as at 30 June 2015 increased to HK$125.5
million from HK$98.6 million as at 31 December 2014. The increase was
primarily due to the recognition of deferred income arising from various
maintenance services to be provided by the Group.

Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets of Integration and Solutions Services business increased
in line with the increase in the trade receivables of Solutions Services
business incurred by a billing issued to a government department of
HKSAR as previously mentioned.

Segment liabilities of Integration and Solutions Services business
increased due to the recognition of deferred income arising from various
maintenance services to be provided by the Solution Services business.

Segment assets and segment liabilities of Applications Services business
increased mainly due to the acquisition of Sanyo Extended in early 2015.

Segment assets of Investments business increased slightly due to the net
effect of (i) the appreciation in value of investment properties held and
(i) the decrease in investments held under available-for-sale investments
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity

Total equity as at 30 June 2015 slightly increased by 0.9% to HK$426.6
million (31 December 2014: HK$422.8 million). The change was mainly a
result of the retention of the net profit earned in first half of 2015, partially
offset by the reclassification of 2014 final and special dividends to current
liability upon the approval of the dividends at the annual general meeting
held in June 2015.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had pledged an investment property with
a fair value of HK$55.0 million (31 December 2014: HK$52.8 million), listed
debt and equity securities of HK$13.9 million (31 December 2014: HK$10.9
million) and bank balances of HK$12.8 million (31 December 2014: HK$6.9
million) to secure certain general bank facilities including guarantee/
performance bonds facilities granted to the Group in aggregate of
HK$134.0 million (31 December 2014: HK$134.0 million) of which HK$5.7
million (31 December 2014: HK$5.4 million) have been utilised as at 30
June 2015.
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)
FERE(E)

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s bank balances and cash (excluded
pledged bank deposit of HK$12.8 million) was HK$325.8 million (31
December 2014: HK$342.6 million).

All of the Group's on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group has not adopted any hedging policies, as these
currencies carry relatively low exchange fluctuation risks. Nevertheless,
the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure to minimise exchange risk
should the need arise.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had no bank borrowings (31 December
2014: Nil). The Group’s current ratio representing current assets divided
by current liability was 3.4 (31 December 2014: 4.2) and the gearing
ratio, representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was 23.1% (31
December 2014: 19.1%).

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and prevailing market conditions.

The remuneration policies adopted for the six months ended 30 June
2015 are consistent with those disclosed in the Group’s 2014 Annual
Report. As at 30 June 2015, the Group employed 263 full time employees
and 2 contract-based employees (31 December 2014: 270 full time
employees and 4 contract-based employees).

As at 30 June 2015, the Company operates a share option scheme and
a share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to the employees who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no significant investments
held as at 30 June 2015.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in note 19 regarding an acquisition of subsidiaries, the
Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
during the reporting period.
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE(E)

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at
30 June 2015.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities as at 30 June 2015.

CHANGES SINCE 31 DECEMBER 2014

There were no other significant changes in the Group’s financial position
or from the information disclosed under management discussion and
analysis in the report for the year ended 31 December 2014.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of an interim dividend of 7 HK cents
(30 June 2014: 7 HK cents) per share for the six months ended 30 June
2015. The interim dividend will be distributed on or about Thursday, 17
September 2015 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on Monday, 7 September 2015.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
4 September 2015 to Monday, 7 September 2015, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify the interim dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited,
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 2 September 2015.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting period.

By Order of the Board

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
Ng Cheung Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 August 2015
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

I~ =] = N7
FIEﬁ EH :é-‘/'.l'\/El\ Eflﬁ‘%%

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Computer And Technologies
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the unaudited condensed
consolidated interim financial results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the six months ended 30 June 2015,
together with the comparative amounts. These condensed consolidated
interim financial results have been reviewed by the Company’s audit

committee.

Foolt

REES:
= HDE T AR JIRANCIDS S E NG N
SEDBE_ZT-AFA=TRALERERZ
AREZERAGS TR BREERLRH
EFEREATHMBRECKRART
BEREZBEEEH -

BERAR(ARFNEFS([&E

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT HEAZmEIEER
ORLOSS
For the six months ended 30 June
BZEAA=1THILEAEA
2015 2014
=T-1F —T-mF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REE®R) (REEZEZ)
Notes HKS$’000 HKS’000
it FET FET
REVENUE ON 5 106,762 103,853
Cost of sales and services $HE MARFEACAR (48,912) (47,725)
Gross profit E7 57,850 56,128
Other income and gains, net HAaUA R e 558 5 5,569 5,308
Foreign exchange differences, net b R85 (8) (5,355)
Fair value gains/(losses), net: N ERE S (EI8)F58E
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELESARZ
profit or loss BB E 518 (488)
Investment properties EYE 2,200 7,112
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R DHEEY (13,574) (13,333)
General and administrative expenses —RMITHAY (26,033) (24,482)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE AR R 6 26,522 24,890
Income tax expense FriS i 7 (3,255) (2,339)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE &4 T]#%5 A FE{L
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 71 R a A 23,267 22,551
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE & B & B R IR R (L
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF SRER
THE PARENT 9 HK cents &1 HK cents ;2111
Basic HA 9.64 9.37
Diluted e 9.60 9.32

Details of the dividends proposed for the period are disclosed in note 8 to

the financial statements.
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BRFE2HENE

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHILEAEA

2015 2014
—E-RF —T—mE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEEX) (RigEZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD ZS HARE A 23,267 22,551
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hitt 2 EWA
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified  REZHEIR - Eh2EWA K
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: EHOoBEEESRK
Available-for-sale investments: —H HERE
Changes in fair value NEEE 16 197
Reclassification adjustments for gains MU RN RS BT
included in the condensed consolidated PIBREITTET DR
statement of profit or loss — gain on disposal — H ek (107) =
(91) 197
Exchange differences on translation of foreign B E/FINEERFELZ
operations fEH =X 5 (1,221)
Net other comprehensive loss to be reclassified A& i - b2 mEFEE
to profit or loss in subsequent periods BEFHDBEEERR (86) (1,024)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified L& HAR - E 2 EW A
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: TEEHHEEERK
Gain on property revaluation LE G 2,630 =
Income tax effect FriStis & (658) =
Net other comprehensive income not to be AEBEAR - Hib2EUW A
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent RS E%ﬁ TERE
periods BEK 1,972 =
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) AHEEMBZEBA S (HE)
FOR THE PERIOD 1,886 (1,024)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE (SYNGIE 2PN LR
PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF ZHEKRALALE
THE PARENT 25,153 21,527

—RERHRE | R RGEEER AT
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R BAAR S B IS AR R

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-HF —T g
RB=+RA +=ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (e&iz)
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
BiaE FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE NEE 10 7,311 10,742
Investment properties wEME 11 65,665 58,265
Goodwill EES 12 44,575 29,211
Other intangible assets HEmEpEE 13 6,791 =
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 14 1,900 6,705
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELEERARZ
profit or loss WEEE 16 4,085 1,573
Total non-current assets BB EAEE 130,327 106,496
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 365 712
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 R RN E R 15 49,220 34,142
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIR - e REAERK
other receivables g 6,975 5,429
Due from contract customers B A HE FRIE 3,738 3,870
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 14 5,031 5,075
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELERARZ
profit or loss WIEEE 16 9,838 9,299
Tax recoverable ARERIR 11,036 8,030
Pledged bank deposits BIEIRITIFER 12,755 6,943
Cash and cash equivalents RekFERREEE 325,814 342,644
Total current assets BB EAE 424,772 416,144
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables, other payables and S E SRR - EfhESS
accruals FRIB N FERTFRIE 17 (59,033) (57,811)
Due to contract customers AR FRIA (10,875) (7,407)
Deferred revenue FEFEYA (40,210) (22,069)
Tax payable FESITIIE (15,363) (11,320)
Total current liabilities JEENE B4 (A (125,481) (98,607)
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 299,291 317,537
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EEERREA RS 429,618 424,033
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 18 (2,994) (1,216)
Net assets BEFE 426,624 422,817
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the BATEE AELER
parent
Issued capital BT 24,419 24,419
Share premium account I m (B AR 38,493 38,493
Shares held under the restricted RIE B R &I (D ZE =T 2
share award scheme BaZKkHD (3,297) (3,731)
Other reserves H b 367,009 341,928
Proposed final and special dividends R AR B R A B AR E = 21,708
Total equity AR 1E 426,624 422,817

14
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BRGmeEmZER

Attributable to owners of the parent

SRTREAEL
Other reserves
EfbiE
Shares held
under the Available-
restricted Share- for-sale Proposed
Share share based Property ~ investment Exchange finaland
Issued ~ premium  Contributed award  payment  Goodwill revaluation  revaluation Reserve  fluctuation  Retained special Total
capital account surplus scheme reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits ~ dividends equity
REGRH
TRiIASEE e R
B AERE RS N REER EXRD
BE S g RH BB RE  PERE ERRER B BREe A& REER ERE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Er  fEr  TEr T TEr TEr TEr TEn TEr TET TEn F#r
At 1 January 2014 R=F-RF-A-A %449 38,493 29619 (4735) 2367 (7,227) = 637 733 6,106 300,365 21,641 412418
Profitfor the period HERR - - - - - - - - - - s - 0w
Other comprehensive income AHFEAZERA
forthe period:
Changes in fair value of available- A HEREATE
for-sale investments g - - - - - - - 197 - - - - 197
Exchange differences on i)
translation of foreign operations ~ E 3 ZE = = = = = = = = = (1.221) = = (1221)
Total comprehensive income THRH2ERALE
for the period = = = = = = = 197 = (1.221) 2551 = 20,57
Vesting of shares heldunderthe BRI/ REEEAT
restricted share award scheme hhER - - - 640 (640) - - - - - - - -
Share award arrangements ROREZHE - - - - 544 - - - - - - - 544
Final and special 2013 dvidends ~ ER=F—=ERER
declared HAIRE = = (26) = = = = = = = - ed)  (@1687)
At30June 2014 RZZ-MERA=1H U9 38493 29593 (4095) 21 (7227) - 834 73 4885 32916 - msn
Attributable to owners of the parent
BATEEARE
Other reserves
Rfbfte
Shares held
under the Available-
restricted Share- for-sale Proposed
Share share based Property  investment Exchange final and
Issued  premium  Contributed award  payment  Goodwill revaluation revaluation  Reserve fluctuation  Retained special Total
capital  account surplus  scheme reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits ~ dividends equity
REARS
ROZR e Bk
BEf kit HHEE RGN N REEf EXRD R
Bx  BERE BARR  ZRB fE EEEE EMER i RERES f% REEN RIRE  ERAE
HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
fér FEn  FEn  TEr  TEn  TEn TEn  FEn  FEn A TR TEr TR
At 1 January 2015 RZF-R5-A-R 24,419 38,493 = (3,731) 2,428 (7,227) = 525 733 5297 340,172 21,708 22817
Profitfor the period THERT - - - - - - - - - - Bl - Bl
Other comprehensive income AHFEHRERA
forthe period:
Changesinfairvalue of available- A1t EREAT(E
for-sale investments -] - - - - - - - (91) - - - - (91)
Exchange differences on BEBIERREEL
translation of foreign operations ~ EX £ - = = = - - - - - 5 - - 5
Fairvalue gain on revaluationof ~ NEREREAMERL
abuilding upon transferto —HiBTERNATHE
investment property 63 - - - - - - 1972 - - - - - 1972
Total comprehensive income R ERAEE
for the period - - - - - - 19712 (91) - 5 23,267 - 25153
Vesting of shares heldunderthe ~ BR#RAREREET
restricted share award scheme RREE - - - 434 (434) - - - - - - - -
Share award arrangements Rin BT - o = o 382 o - - - - - - 38
Final and special 2014dividends ~ EE-Z-MERER
declared HhlkE - - - - - - - - - - (20) (21,708) (21,728)
At30June 2015 REZ-TFARA=TH 2419 38493 - (3,297) 2376 (7.227) 1972 434 733 5302 363419 - 42662

—E-AERBEES | FE R AEEARAR
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BRGERERER

For the six months ended 30 June

HEANA=tTHIEAEA

2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—mE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEZR) (REgEEZ)
Notes HK$’000 HKS$’000
e+ FETT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHZRENE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax PR AT ) 26,522 24,890
Adjustments for: REEEE
Bank interest income RITHEUA 5 (4,972) (5,396)
Dividend income from listed investments ~_FH#%& 7 i B A 5 (309) (296)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BENMRE
plant and equipment HE 2 Wa= 5 (128) (1)
Loss on disposal of financial assets at HEZRA T ELERAR
fair value through profit or loss 2B ERE 5 - 607
Fair value losses/(gains), net: NEEEER (W) F5
Available-for-sale investments AN ERE (EEE
(transfer from equity on disposal) HEER) 5 (107) =
Financial assets at fair value through BN EKBHEARZ
profit or loss WIEEE (518) 488
Investment properties KEYE (2,200) (7,112)
Depreciation e 6 1,299 608
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE S5 RFRE 6 189 299
Reversal of impairment of trade B Y E 5 IR FUR A
receivables 6 (233) (196)
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hibfmm & s 6 373 =
Equity-settled share-based payment et 4E E AR (D A
expenses 6 382 544
20,298 14,435
Decrease in inventories FERL 347 5414
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEUE 5 BR R K e L= SR A (12,715) (22,855)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from  JEWAXHEEZIER LD
contract customers (3%00) 132 (117)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and AN FUE « e REMEK
other receivables FRIBLE N (1,151) (2,705)
Decrease in trade payables, other payables [E{E Z R « E A fELS
and accruals FRIE K e 5T SRR R (9,719) (6,197)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to FERtALHE RIS I,
contract customers OR) 3,468 (57)
Increase in deferred revenue PRI ALE A 14,415 14,305
Cash generated from operations QBRI SIH S 15,075 2,223
Hong Kong profits tax paid BB BER (2,353) (2,260)
Overseas taxes paid BHUEINETE (111) (33)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating 42 /EBIFT1S(FTA) RS
activities =5 12,611 (70)
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

gﬁ EH n/-.r\/\IE:%/JlLE'?% (/%g)

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHIEAEA

2015 2014
—E-EHF = — U4
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEZ) (CRigEZ)
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
HiaF FETT FET
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating e EB S, (AR &
activities MEFER 12,611 (70)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received BUERTTF & 4,972 5,396
Dividends received from listed investments B _F & TULIZ B 309 296
Purchases of items of property, BEYE  BEMEH
plant and equipment I5H (591) (5,556)
Purchases of listed investments BE EhRE (2,533) (3,000)
Acquisition of subsidiaries g 1) pNE 19 (9,252) =
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BENMERE
property, plant and equipment T8 B TS RIE 324 1
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets & 53 TEL B A
at fair value through profit or loss L BT A EFTS OB - 3,018
Proceeds from disposal of available- o ’ETT?EH'J EREE
for-sale investments HIE 4,865 22,041
Decrease in pledged bank deposits Eﬁ?ﬁﬂfﬁ TIE RO 1,310 52
(Increase)/decrease in non-pledged bank U E&RS FREIEAH #8:8 =& A
deposits with original maturity of more ZEEE R (g m),
than three months when acquired N (8,219) 15,609
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing WEEEATE,(FrA)RE
activities mEFEE (8,815) 37,857
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid BERRRE (21,728) (21,667)
Net cash flows used in financing activities & EEFTRAIR &R =75 (21,728) (21,667)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RERERREEEZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #n, (R ) FHE (17,932) 16,120
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning HRyzIRe MERIBEEE
of period 291,891 258,962
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes, net BE) s R B RRE 5 (1,277)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS %%Zﬁﬁﬁgmiﬁﬁﬁé
AT END OF PERIOD 273,964 273,805
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH iﬁﬁ&%lﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁiﬁ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in %ﬁﬁﬂﬁf?ﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘%#ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz
the condensed consolidated statement HeRFERRESEE
of financial position 325,814 301,214
Pledged deposit for banking facilities RITIR R UEE R R 2 HR
granted by a bank with original maturity BB =1{E A < $R1TRLEFT
less than three months when acquired HIFER 9,144 8,872
Non-pledged time deposits with original U BE R 2 21| HA H 8 38 = 1 A
maturity of more than three months 2 AR TE BT K
when acquired (60,994) (36,281)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in AR EMERMTZ
the condensed consolidated statement BHEMZERBESEE
of cash flows 273,964 273,805

—RERHRE | R RGEEER AT
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Notes to Financial Statements

BA R IR AR

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &&= —ZE—H4F /XA =+HL/~E A

1.

3.1

18

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

During the period, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

. provision of enterprise applications software and related
services, business process outsourcing, e-business, and
related maintenance services;

. provision of system and network integration, information
technology (“IT") solutions development and implementation,
and related maintenance services; and

. property and treasury investments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
information of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2015
has been prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
information does not include all the information and disclosures
required in the annual financial statements, and should be read in
conjunction with the Group’s annual financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial information
are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Group’s
annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014,
except for the adoption of the following new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which also included
HKASs and Interpretations) that affect the Group and are adopted
for the first time for the current period’s financial statements.

3.1

SEEHR

Rt RMEEBR AR IR B RELM
B2 BRAT - HiEFf=Ean
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda ° AR F)F 2 & 3 Bh
LA E S EE B B 10057 U5 B2 10
*; o

A - NREEEEA T ERER

- REHEEEREE AR
EBnRiEINA - ETE SR -
AR ARRARE AR

- RHERMABEERRSE - B
ME((EARRDBRTRER
REM - ARERRERS - &

- MENEBRE -

mBEXE

AEEBE T -AFANA=THIER
HAZAREEZEAGRE T HHHER
DIRERBBMAXSMARARES L
MRAZERRE G BB LS
RE((HEEHMAG NEM2EEE
SPEAN(T B A G ER ) E345
PAREERE RS -

AEEZEPAEETRYBENLTE
RERVBHRERARTEZMBER KH
B OEEAKREEE_T-NFE+—
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B SRR EE (42 )

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &= —ZE—AF XA =+ H L/~ @ A

3.2 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 3.2 EtRRKEZEH
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised standards and new NE IEEA$HH B2 B 76 Rk & R ER AR
interpretation for the first time for the current period'’s financial AT EAS TR 2R -
statements.
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee EAEER REWEFTE - ES
Contributions F19R(EFTAK) #it
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs —E-FFE HEERANBRE
2010-2012 Cycle ZE——FHE  RRIER 2B
ZER#
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs —E——FF HEERAN RS
2011-2013 Cycle ZE—=FHE  ERIEL 2B
ZER#
The adoption of the above revised standards and interpretation has B4 _F ST R 2 B 2 S TS
had no significant financial effect on these financial statements. MR EEAPETE -
In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to the AN » RABANE IS EE B R BT
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange relating to AR SMREFB RN aEH (F622
the disclosure of financial information with reference to the Hong E)FEMEBAYBEEREE Y FTE
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current financial BEETAR - WEIEHRER 2 T B E A
period. The main impact to the financial statements is on the BHRERETERZ 27| RIFEE -
presentation and disclosure of certain information in the financial
statements.

—T—RERHRE | MRS EEARAR 19



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BTGRP EE (&)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &% —Z— A4 /,x A=+ H 1L/~@ A

4.

20

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) the application services segment that primarily engages in
the provision of enterprise applications software and related
operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing and
e-business, and related maintenance services;

(b) theintegration and solutions services segment that
primarily engages in the sales of computer networks and
system platforms, and the provision of system and network
integration, IT solutions development and implementation,
and related maintenance services; and

(c) the investments segment that primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and
interest income and/or for capital appreciation.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit
before tax is measured consistently with the Group'’s profit before
tax except that unallocated interest income, unallocated other
income and gains, net, unallocated foreign exchange differences,
net, corporate and other unallocated depreciation, corporate and
other unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude tax recoverable, pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during the
current and prior period.

@ EARBIHBLDEBUREFRED
EEREMHREEEENH - X
BREINHREFE SRS - A
RARRARERT
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PAR A 8 77 BB 15 5 B LA R AR AR B,
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EREBEIERAKRBRKENBZE
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E o DEBRBITIRIE A ¥R 5 0 2B F
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BB HRARIRE(AE)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &2 —E— R4 A=+ HIL~EA

4, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFITER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Operating segments (@) REDE
Group rEH
Integration and
Application Services Solutions Services Investments Total
R SRRBATRRE RE fg
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“E2-nf Mm% ZEB-1fF —T-M% ZB-RfF TN ZB-1F _TM%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (RIEER) (REBR) (REER) (REER) (REER)  (REER)  (REER)
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue: AW
Sales to external customers  SHEFHFREP 46,804 46,962 58,446 54431 1,512 2460 106762* 103853
Otherincome and gains, net LU A Jo i 58 52 8 130 = 415 (311) 597A (283)A
Total it 46,856 46,990 58,576 54,431 1,927 2,149 107,359 103,570
Segment results DEEE 18,375 19,147 11,906 9,685 4,523 8,867 34,804 37,699
Reconciliation: HE
Unallocated interestincome KB EMA 4,9720 5,396A
Unallocated otherincome ~ RATEMMAK
and gains, net WaFE -A 195A
Unallocated foreign exchange A {25 FE
differences, net (8) (5,355)
Corporate and other PEREMFRAE
unallocated depreciation e (918) (120)
Corporate and other PEREMRAE
unallocated expenses 53 (12,328) (12,925)
Profit before tax ESienyayil 26,522 24,890

—E-AERBEES | FE R AEEARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BTGRP EE (&)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &% —Z— A4 /,x A=+ H 1L/~@ A

4, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) REFI(E)
Group EE
Integration and
Application Services Solutions Services Investments Total
RS YL RE )
30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

ZE-1% —Z-M% ZEB-If _—T-M% ZB-1Ff _—T-MF ZB-1F _TMF
~A +-A ~A +=A ~A +=A ~A +=A
=tH =1-H =tR =1-H =tB =t-H =tA =t-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (B8R (REER)  (BER) (REER) (B8R (REER) (B3%)
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEx TAT TEx TAT TEx FAT FEx AT

Segment assets PHEE 66,639 4973 43,151 28,643 87,515 84,526 197,305 156,142
Reconciliation: %
Corporate and other PERAMRAREE

unallocated assets 357,794 366,498
Total assets BEEE 555,099 522,640

Segment liabilities AHEE 58,191 42,855 48,072 37453 859 80 107,122 81,128

Reconciliation: %

Corporate and other PERERARAR

unallocated liabilities 21,353 18,695

Total liabilities BEEE 128,475 99,823

* This represents the consolidated revenue of HKS 106,762,000 a FERE B A B a2 < A A
(2014: HKS103,853,000) in the condensed consolidated statement 106,762,000, 0 ( — & — 94 :
of profit or loss. 103,853,000 7T) °

A These comprise the consolidated other income and gains, A BB E Em kN E
net, of HK$5,569,000 (2014: HK$5,308,000) in the condensed b A R 75 )% BB 73 5,569,000
consolidated statement of profit or loss. BT (= F—I4F : 5308000/

JT) e
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BB HRARIRE(AE)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &2 —E— R4 A=+ HIL~EA

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFHER(HE)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) REITE)
Group REH
Integration and
Application Services Solutions Services Investments Total
FERBRR SRRBRSRRH RE aE
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
~%-1f _—ZT-MF Z%B-1Ff _—T-NF Z—F-Rf _T-MF —F-1F _—T-Mmf
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER) (REER) (REER)  (REER)  (REER) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TEx FAT TEx FET TEx FET TEx AT
Other segment information: E &R :
Net fair value gains on REMEATENE
investment properties B - - - - 2,200 7112 2,200 7112
Net fair value gains/(losses) on i ATEFBHEAE 2
financial assets at fairvalue ~ EIEEAFE
through profit or loss Wi/ (BB)F8 - - - - 518 (488) 518 (488)
Amortisation of other HthEpEEEE
intangible assets 373 - - - - - 373 -
Depreciation & 170 191 169 250 42 47 381 488
Corporate and other PEREMRARNE
unallocated depreciation 918 120
1,299 608
Impairment losses recognised/ HEFRAFA K
(reversed) inthe condensed ~ #32,/ (%)
consolidated statementof 7 H/EEE
profit or loss, net* TFaE 140 70 (184) 3 - - (44) 103
Capital expenditure** BARR 152 149 288 49 - - 440 198
Corporate and other TEREMARARER
unallocated capital R
expenditure** 194 6,558
634 6,756
3 Including impairment losses recognised in the condensed 2 BIER 4 & 18 7 2 TR GR

consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable to the
application services segment and the integration and solutions
services segment of HK$189,000 (2014: HK$91,000) and nil (2014:
HK$208,000), respectively, and impairment losses reversed in the
condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable
to the application services segment and the integration and
solutions services segment of HK$49,000 (2014: HK$21,000) and

HKS 184,000 (2014: HKS 175,000), respectively.

*%

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

XX

equipment and including property, plant and equipment from the

acquisition of subsidiaries.

—E-AERBEES | FE R AEEARAR

2 B JE FH AR 7% 57 58 J% 55 5k % B
ST BRI 55 B2 B BT 1R
51 #189,000/8 7T (= F—PY4F :
91,0008 ) RAE(=F—U4F :
208,000;8T) + RRE A& 1B
7 e [B] 2K B FEFA R 5 57 B e 55
B R BRIy B R 57 8857 Fll A
49,000;87T (=F—/I4F : 21,000
BT ) % 184,000/8 T (—F—/4
iF : 175000757 °

B BFEYE - B KR

RE - UREIEHWENE A F]
B2 ~ BB RRENE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BTGRP EE (&)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &% —Z— A4 /,x A=+ H 1L/~@ A

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RESBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER
Group rEE
(i)  Revenue from external customers (i) XKESPREFZKA
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BE HE R B
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Z2-1f —T-mF ZB-1f _T-MF ZB-1F _T-QF
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (RE8K) (REER) (RE8K) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TE7 FAT &7 TAT &7 TAT

Segment revenue: DHYA

Sales to external customers BETHREP 101,034 88,382 5,728 15471 106,762 103,853
The revenue information is based on the locations of WAER T AR FFTER &

the customers. BHAE o

(i)  Non-current assets i) HREEE
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-HF —T g
ANA=+H +=ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (fe=%)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FAETT FEIT
Hong Kong B8 114,981 88,729
Mainland China =e)EloNpid 9,361 9,489
124,342 98,218
The non-current asset information is based on the IERBEEER VIR EER
locations of assets and excludes financial instruments. T 25 » Z W ARt B
HILHE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B SRR MR (42)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &2 —E— R4 A=+ HIL~EA

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(c) Information about major customers

Revenues from external customers individually amounting to
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue:

For the period ended 30 June 2015, revenues from two major
customers of HK$26,519,000 and HK$17,868,000 were derived
from the integration and solutions services segment.

For the period ended 30 June 2014, revenue from a major
customer of HK$29,881,000 was derived from the integration
and solutions services segment.

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold, net of trade
discounts, returns and business tax, where applicable; fees earned
from the provision of enterprise applications software, related
operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing, e-business,
system and network integration, IT solutions development
and implementation and related services; fees earned from the
provision of maintenance services; gross rental income earned from
investment properties; and interest income earned from treasury
investments during the period.

—E-AERBEES | FE R AEEARAR

4.

=

()

%

7 HPE R ()

ITEEFZER

KEMRBEE ZWA@BIEARSE
E4EUT A10%3 A E -

HE-_Z—RAFNA=1+H8LH
M REMBEZEZEFZWAR
26,519,000/ 7T }2.17,868,000/8 7T *
EASBEIIREEXRBRAR
RR#%s 3 &F -

HE-_Z—NFNA=1+HLH
M RE—BEZEZEFZ2WAR
29,881,000/ 7C - BEEAERETIKE
SRR T RIRIE D5 ©

WA ~ E A A K 585 5

WA (TR AR E 2 5588 ) S5 A B 35
EEMIEZERBNGRES NN - R
EREXHR(NER)  RECEERY
- MERBINA - ZHRBIN - B
FEIRY - ZRRLBEERRE - &
AR AR T FR 3R N B e A S AR B R
BRI ER  RERBERBHRRZE
A REMERR 2B BRALLE : LA
Kt BB R AR & BRER 2 T S
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BB ERAR L (AR

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &% —Z— A4 /,x A=+ H 1L/~@ A

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. kA

(CONTINUED)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as follows:

WA

H W A R Wz

m

HE(AE)

HAIA R FRE DM

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHIEAEA

2015 2014
—B-HF —E—mEF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEERK) (REEHEZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FEIT
Revenue KA
Provision of enterprise applications software 121> % fE R &+ N iE R 2 E
and related operation outsourcing, SN EFERIZOMIRE
business process outsourcing B 5 BR 7% LA R ARRE R Z AR TS
and e-business, and related
maintenance services 46,804 46,962
Sales of computer networks and system HEBKEB R RGTE
platforms, and the provision of system LA R SR Rt R AR AR S X,
and network integration, IT solutions IR% - BeEHRAER T RER
development and implementation, and it A MARBRE RS
related maintenance services 58,446 54,431
Gross rental income from investment LAY 2 S WA BTE R ETR
properties and interest income from TE 2 F BN
treasury investments 1,512 2,460
106,762 103,853
Other income and gains, net Hg A R W55
Bank interest income RITH WA 4,972 5,396
Dividend income from listed investments FHREZ B A 309 296
Fair value gain, net: NEEWEFRE
Available-for-sale investments A EERE
(transfer from equity on disposal) (EEE HERER) 107 -
Loss on disposal of financial assets at HER A FELERARZ
fair value through profit or loss WIS B ERE - (607)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME  BEMRIEBEEE 2
plant and equipment g 128 1
Others Hith 53 222
5,569 5,308
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B SRR MR (42)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &2 —E— R4 A=+ HIL~EA

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. KRBIADZR
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REB ZBRBALEFEMNEG GEA)T
HI|RIE

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tTHIEAEA

2015 2014
—E-ERF —T—F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (CREEEZ)
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Depreciation E 1,299 608
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hib R E N 373 -
Equity-settled share-based MR E AR D ST 2
payment expense 382 544
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE B ERFORE 189 299
Reversal of impairment of trade BRI EWE 5 RF0RE
receivables (233) (196)
Foreign exchange differences, net X Z R FRE 8 5,355
7. INCOME TAX 7. FR8®
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (six BEBNERIIBBERARNREBEBSEE 2
months ended 30 June 2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable STERTE MR E165%(HE_ZF—N
profits arising in Hong Kong during the period. Taxes on profits FRA=ZTHIEANMEAR : 16.5%) fEH #
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax 1 o HAbih[E RIS 2 T IR &
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group REBEEEBMERR REERIE
operates. HERATEE -
For the six months ended 30 June
BZEAA=1THLAEA
2015 2014
—F-HF —T-F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&E=X) (RE&EZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Group: NEEH :
Current - Hong Kong BNER — &4
Charge for the period HAFIES 3,314 2,084
Current — Elsewhere BVEA— B fib it [
Charge for the period HAFIES 3 227
Deferred (note 18) TEAE (BI3E18) (62) 28
Total tax charge for the period BRI IR HH 42 R 3,255 2,339

—T—RERHRE | MRS EEARAR 27



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BTGRP EE (&)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &% —Z— A4 /,x A=+ H 1L/~@ A

7.

28

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

During the prior period, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department
(the “IRD”) has issued a protective assessment (“first protective
assessment”) to a subsidiary of the Company demanding tax of
approximately HK$2,260,000 for the year of assessment 2007/08.
An enquiry letter was issued to that subsidiary on the same day
regarding, inter alia, the nature and the deductibility of certain
expenditure/expenses. The subsidiary has objected to the first
protective assessment and a written notice of objection has been
filed to the IRD, at the same time, the subsidiary has purchased a tax
reserve certificate at the request of the IRD.

On 12 March 2015, the IRD has further issued a protective
assessment (“second protective assessment”) to that subsidiary of
the Company demanding tax of approximately HK$2,354,000 for
the year of assessment 2008/09. A further enquiry letter was also
issued to that subsidiary to request for additional information and
documents regarding the nature and the deductibility of those
abovementioned expenditure/expenses. The subsidiary has also
objected to the second protective assessment and a written notice
of objection has been filed to the IRD in March 2015. The subsidiary
has purchased a tax reserve certificate at the request of the IRD
and is in the process of gathering the additional information and
documents requested in support of the deduction claim.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not practicable
at this early stage to estimate reliably the outcome of the deduction
claim and therefore, the financial effect (including the amount
or timing thereof, if any) of the foregoing enquiry. However,
the directors believe that except for certain insignificant tax
adjustments, the effect of which has been reflected in the prior
year's profit or loss of the Group, and subject to availability of the
required evidence, the subsidiary has valid grounds to support
the deductibility of those expenditure/expenses. Accordingly, no
further provision for Hong Kong profits tax is considered necessary
at this stage.

Fris®i (&)

RBEERE - BEHER(HER M
KRB —RKWE A7) 2 HRE ST
([FE—IRREERTR ) « Bk =—F
T+ T N\FEZFE TR #2,260,000
BIT o [AIH - MIERRZH B A A
ERERE AREBE(EFeR)AETH
X2 R A F AR, o sZ M
BRARREE IXREMTR - WEH
Rz EMBNREREZHRER @ R
ZWBAREEHERERBEME
%& °

R-ZT—RFE=F+-8  HREBAK
RNaE) 2 M B AR — S RE T
([FEZRREERTR ) « BB —F
TN ENEZFE T 42,354,000
T MBI AR LAY STHY
M & A] & T LA 2 E AL E R R S
MM B A RE— B NER R - %
IEPNGIDINSES E Iy = = i
EREZERBIN _Z—AF=A
RREFKER - ZHBRRINE EBHRG
RERBEERNS - WIRIEKEMS

EMERE X AT EIRZERY,
Fih e

ARREBFRRG - RYIPHEEA Sl
FAEERAZERREBVBEE(R
EERcBEARRE(WE)) X TIER
17 BEESHERE T FTEATG AR
S B EERRNAKEREFE
ZBERNA ° I - BERIEIEZE
NAIEABBIBBE X FHRMZ SR
X HASRGMERERERD A E
EoHlt ESR/RERBAREL
NS E— S -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B SRR MR (42)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &2 —E— R4 A=+ HIL~EA

8.

DIVIDENDS

Subsequent to the end of the interim period, the Board has
determined that an interim dividend of 7 HK cents (2014: 7
HK cents) in cash per ordinary share should be paid to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear in the
Register of Members on Monday, 7 September 2015.

Dividends attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the interim period.

a. RPHHHEEEREK EFER
ERR-_Z-AFNALR(EH
—) BFIIR B Mz AN D B RRIK
e HEBEREERAL7EN
(ZZ2—mF : 781) -

b.  _EfEMBFE RSB AEL R P
HARARDIR A o

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHILEAEA

2015 2014
bk —F—F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (REeEZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Final and special dividends in respect of J&#t & K 5/ B EA RS IRA~t
the previous financial year, approved A8 - EABTFE 2 K HA
and paid during the interim period of N HFRIA% 8 G M B
HK$0.09 (2014: HK$0.09) per ordinary ~ 0.09/87T( — = — P4 :
share 0.09/87T) 21,978 22,003
Less: Dividend for shares held under the & - 1R#EARA &l B R HIAX D
Company's restricted share REETEIEE 2R HD
award scheme Frigh% 8 (250) (336)
21,728 21,667

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 241,275,535 (2014: 240,555,491) in issue during the period, as
adjusted to exclude the shares held under the restricted share
award scheme of the Company.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the period, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares granted under
the share option scheme of the Company and the deemed vesting
of all dilutive restricted shares of the Company awarded under the
restricted share award scheme of the Company into ordinary shares.

—E-AERBEES | FE R AEEARAR

BRAAEERRRELERER

BREAZFEBIHBIETA L ER
A& R FEAE A HA R & B R AN E BT E B
R% hn#E S 35 25 241,275,535 18 ( — & — Y
& 1 240,555,491 % ) 5t E - W HIBRA
Nl R IR (5 2B AT EIIE T AT AR5
{EH AR -

FREERNSBIREF AR L AR
PR EBIEABREENFE - HEAZ
BRI OB R EERELRT
PIRZHAERITEBREE - UEE
BNRFAERBEARBBERESBIRLZ
BEEEEBREASEITELL R
B - SARARIEAN D A R IR () SRRt
R Z R R (E R A IR I
BIERE QT RRE - NRAEIZEE
7 AET B BBNRE AR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BB ERAR L (AR

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &%= — &

30

—RFRNA=THIERER

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(CONTINUED)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

Earnings

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

%@ﬂ%ﬁ&&i@ﬁ%&@ﬂ
IIE

AT E T IRE AR & #E & T PR BUR

—F .
27
BREARBEERNIEFG AR L AR

REREEENFE -

Number of shares
Sk €|
2015 2014
—T-E1F —mE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (REEEZ)
Shares [ &viy
Weighted average number of ordinary STEEFREARZTFTAER
shares in issue during the period used in 2 31T & 3@ AR INKE 19 81
the basic earnings per share calculation 241,275,535 240,555,491
Effect of dilution — weighted average BERE LRI
number of ordinary shares: jﬁ@%ﬁ :
Restricted shares awarded under BB R RA RS
the Company’s restricted share RENET B 2 ARl
award scheme petn 1,121,697 1,292,788
242,397,232 241,848,279
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B SRR MR (42)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &2 —E— R4 A=+ HIL~EA

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

10. 1% BERRE

Group AEE
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-EHF —T—F
ANA=tH +ZH=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (=)
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Net carrying amount, as at 1 January R—A—HB  REFE 10,742 5,244
Additions NE 591 7,512
Disposals (net book value) HeE(BR®EE) (196) (27)
Transfer to investment properties RS EYHE (2,570) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 19) W B A R (FsE19) 43 -
Depreciation provided during the period ~ Ei T & (1,299) (1,963)
Exchange realignment M 5,8 B - (24)
Net carrying amount, as at 30 June/ RANA=+8/
31 December TZA=+t—8 " RE*E 7,311 10,742
11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 1. REYE
Group REE
30June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-1F —T—MmF
AA=+HA +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RABEX) (fE&EZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January W—A—HB ' REEA 58,265 50,140
Net gain from a fair value adjustment NERARE 2 W) T8 2,200 8,125
Transfer from owner-occupied property BB BT 5,200 =
Carrying amount, as at 30 June/ BAA=+8/
31 December +=—A=+—08 ' E&@EE 65,665 58,265

—E-AERBEES | FE R AEEARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BTGRP EE (&)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &% —Z— A4 /,x A=+ H 1L/~@ A

12.

13.

32

GOODWILL 12. B8
Group REE
HKS'000
FET
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NE+=A=+—H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2014 and R-ZE—NFE—F—BRE-ZT—N4F
31 December 2014 T A=+ —ANAKEREE 29,211
At 30 June 2015 R-B—HFXA=1+H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2015 MRZZE-—AF—A—BRAREEEA 29,211
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 19) WREME 2 B (FiEE19) 15,364
Carrying amount at 30 June 2015 RZE—RAFA=+HEHEEA 44,575
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13. At B EE
Group AEE
Deferred
Customer  development
relationships costs Total
BP#AEFE BERMBEAR et
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
T T FET
At 31 December 2014 R-—EE—MNE+=-—A=+—H
Cost and carrying amount RZZE—WOFEF—H—ABAK
at 1 January 2014 and —E—NFE+-_A=+—H
31 December 2014 AR R AR EE - - -
Deferred
Customer development
relationships costs Total
BEFBAR ETBEBEKE #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FHET FET
At 30 June 2015 R=Z—-AFXA=1H
Cost and carrying amount RZE—RAF—A—BKAER
at 1 January 2015 BRMEE - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WeaEp B A Bl (i E19)
(note 19) 7,164 - 7,164
Amortisation during the period 7 HA 144 £ (373) - (373)
Net carrying amount BREFHE 6,791 - 6,791
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BB HRARIRE(AE)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &2 —E— R4 A=+ HIL~EA

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

14. OJHHERE

Group AEE
30June 31 December

2015 2014

—E-AF —ZE-mEF

ANA=+tH +=ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZ) (fe&z)

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FETT FET

Debt investments, at fair value BATERE 2 EBRE 5,031 9,880
Club membership debenture, at fairvalue R A EFEZ@FEHEES 1,900 1,900
6,931 11,780
Portion classified as current assets DERREEEND (5,031) (5,075)
Portion classified as non-current assets D RIEREEESS 1,900 6,705

During the period, the net loss in respect of the Group’s available-
for-sale investments recognised in other comprehensive income
amounted to HK$91,000 (2014: net gain of HK$197,000).

15. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of

R BEASEREMEZEKAF
R Al SR E 2 FE18 /491,000
B (ZE—WF - FUWE A197,00008

) 2

15. BREZRRRERRE

RERFREER  BERESERLE
WERZEZA VKNG REE RS

provisions, is as follows: HipCENE
Group REE

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—F
AA=+E +=A=+—8
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (F&EZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Within 1 month — & A A 43,764 20,856
1 to 3 months —Z=={@A 2,947 9,572
4to0 6 months N ! 1,738 3,698
More than 6 months SNEA LA E 771 16
49,220 34,142

—E-AERBEES | FE R AEEARAR
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BTGRP EE (&)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &% —Z— A4 /,x A=+ H 1L/~@ A

15. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

For system integration projects and the provision of maintenance
services and software development services, the Group’s trading
terms with its customers vary from contract to contract or
depending on the specific arrangements with individual customers,
and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and on credit.
For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit period
is generally within 120 days, except for certain projects with longer
implementation schedules where the period may extend beyond
120 days, or may be extended for major or specific customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding trade
receivables and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances. Trade and bills receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT ORLOSS

15.

16.

W E B R BN RE ()

BRGERIE B U IR BRI R
HRBERENS  AEEHEETF IR
S AREER A £ 8 T ER=ERIE S
ZHERZHEME - WJREBRFBEEEINK -
TEANREREE - HZSUARKEAE
IRBZEFPME  BEREEH R
TZ120K « MEMWE TIEEB it THIE
- AfEEHTEREMEIB120K © 5%
AREERBERFLEREES - &%
E—EEEIEHEREEZERE S KR
F o ERERENCHENaSRIES
# o AR E WU S EHIT A TR
RS EREMEESRESE - BIKE
SRF B EEIL TETFIE

BATERBESEARZUBEE

Group rEH
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-HE —T—F
AA=+R +=ZH=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE&ER) (Je=1Zz)
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET
Debt investments, at market value EMEFEZEFIRE 4,085 1,573
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong,  ZM{EFTE 2 &E AR E
at market value 9,838 9,299
13,923 10,872
Portion classified as current assets DERRBEERD (9,838) (9,299)
Portion classified as non-current assets D EIEREBES S 4,085 1,573

The debt investments were designated upon initial recognition
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as they are
managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the investments is provided
internally on that basis to the Group’s key management personnel.
Debt investments classified as current assets at 30 June 2015 and 31
December 2014 was a debt with maturity date falls within one year
from the end of the reporting period.

The listed equity investments were all included under current assets
at 30 June 2015 and 31 December 2014 and were classified as held
for trading.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BB HRARIRE(AE)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &2 —E— R4 A=+ HIL~EA

17. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

17. BNESERNR HEESRER

ACCRUALS PRt RRIA
Group AEE
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-EHF —T—F
~A=+RA +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&)
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Trade payables FERTE SRR 17,008 21,276
Other payables HAb eI 23,231 23,376
Accruals FEEtZIE 9,616 13,159
Consideration payable on acquisition of W IEMIB AT 2 ENBEERE
subsidiaries (note 19) (FF3E19) 9,178 =
59,033 57,811

An aged analysis of trade payables as at the end of the reporting

RBEHREER - BNEZRHIZE

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: ZEHZERESTAT ¢
Group REE

30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-1F —T—mF
AA=+HA +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (F&&EZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Within 1 month —fEA R 15,070 18,480
1 to 3 months —Z=18A 411 2,035
4 t0 6 months U EYNEPE 914 178
Over 6 months ~NEA M E 613 583
17,008 21,276
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally FERTE SRR AT E - —#RIE30K A

settled on 30-day terms.

—E-AERBEES | FE R AEEARAR
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BB ERAR L (AR

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &% —Z— A4 /,x A=+ H 1L/~@ A

18. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the period are as

18. JEEBIE

iR RERBERBEZZEHIT

follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EAEHRIBEE
Group EHE
2015
—E-HF
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Revaluation acquisitionof = Withholding
of properties subsidiaries taxes Total
W EE IS A R
MEEMR ZDFPEAE B T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FExT FET
At 1 January 2015 R-ZT—R%F
—A—H 720 - 496 1,216
Acquisition from subsidiaries Y& FE[T B A T)
(note 19) (PffzE19) - 1,182 - 1,182
Deferred tax charged to g kR 2 IR AE
equity ] 658 - - 658
Deferred tax credited to the HINN GRS
condensed consolidated BamRAFLZ
statement of profit or loss ERERIA (M 5E7)
during the period (note 7) - (62) - (62)
At 30 June 2015 RZZE—NhF
~NA=1H 1,378 1,120 496 2,994
2014
—TEF
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Revaluation  acquisition of Withholding
of properties subsidiaries taxes Total
st B B 8 )
MEERL 2R FEAR TR st
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$"000
BT T8 T8 T8
At 1 January 2014 W=—ZE—PF
—H—H 639 - 496 1,135
Deferred tax charged to the HINN GRS
condensed consolidated BRKRTAZ
statement of profit or loss RAETIIE
during the period 81 - - 81
At 31 December 2014 M-ZE—MFE
+=—A=+—H 720 - 496 1,216
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B SRR MR (42)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &2 —E— R4 A=+ HIL~EA

19. BUSINESS COMBINATION 19. ¥KE06t

On 6 February 2015, the Group acquired the entire equity interest in
Sanyo Extended System Services Limited (“Sanyo Extended"”). Sanyo
Extended and its subsidiary (collectively “Sanyo Extended Group”)
are engaged in the provision of a range of software, solutions and
related services to the retailers for the point-of-sale (POS) and
related management. The Group has acquired Sanyo Extended
Group to further expand its application services business and to
extend the existing product offering. The purchase consideration
of approximately HK$22,944,000 for the acquisition was payable in
three tranches in the form of cash.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Sanyo

R-ZE—RAF-A B AEERE=
FHERESARAR(=FAR]) 25
AR - = FMEREMB AR
BZFrHAREE D RSATEDREM
—RIHEREBEHRREF(POS) B -
fRR T R M AR RS A M FE R B IR &

e WB - FhREEALNERHE—F
BAREEAREEBRARABEMME
FEXERI o Wi iE 2 fE B X8 £922,944,000
B WIREW D =8 T -

ZFBREEZAREBIEERABZA

Extended Group as at the date of acquisition were as follows: FERAKEREAT
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
Wigz
AFERER
HKS$'000
TFET
Property, plant and equipment (note 10) W - W MR (FisE10) 43
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTEHER 4,514
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR 5K 2,319
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENFRIA ~ e REAMERGRIE 395
Other payables and accruals H b A FRIE K FE ST RA (1,763)
Deferred revenue BEIEWA (3,726)
Tax payable eI IE (184)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value A HREEFERRE s ATE 1,598
Goodwill on acquisition (note 12) Wi 2 B (FreE12) 15,364
Other intangible assets arising from the acquisition ~ WREFT1S 2 E bR A E (Ki3513)
(note 13) 7,164
Deferred tax liabilities arising from the acquisition WEEFT1S 2 BRI A & & (FEE18)
(note 18) (1,182)
Total cost of the business combination FTEE B2 BB 22,944

—E-AERBEES | FE R AEEARAR
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &% —Z— A4 /,x A=+ H 1L/~@ A

19. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED) 19. ¥BE6t(E)

HKS$000
FET

Satisfied by: AT
Cash Re 13,766
Acquisition consideration payable (note 17) FERT BB B (P EE17) 9,178
Total cost of the business combination ETEE 2 B 22,944

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables as at
the date of acquisition amounted to HK$2,319,000 and HK$395,000,
respectively. The gross contractual amounts of trade receivables
and other receivables were HK$2,369,000 and HK$395,000
respectively, of which trade receivables of HK$50,000 were
expected to be uncollectible.

Included in the goodwill of HK$15,364,000 recognised above was
the value of expected synergies arising from combining operations
of the Group and Sanyo Extended Group. None of the goodwill
recognised was expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
subsidiaries is as follows:

RURE BB ERE SRR R E A E
WK IE R FE D Bl £2,319,0007% 7T &
395,000/ 7T B E IR KR H b fE
WA 2 84 428D 7 A2,369,00078
7L 53950008 7T © A EKE FER
50,000/8 T TEHR -~ ] Uk [a] o

il B R 2 B E15,364,0008 LB IE
HAEEAEBE = FhRER ZEBKM
EXTABBRNREE SERAMERE
HAS S A] R VESRHNFR 1S TR AR IR ©

FRAWEMNEBEAR ZRERE ST
T

HKS'000

TiET

Cash consideration paid BERNRERE (13,766)

Cash and bank balances acquired BUHEIR & RIRITHEH 4,514
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included STAKREEEMEReREZHE SR

in cash flows from investing activities SRIBSEERTF5E (9,252)

Since the acquisition, Sanyo Extended Group contributed
HK$5,492,000 to the Group’s turnover and HK$ 1,333,000 to the
consolidated profit for the period ended 30 June 2015.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the period,
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the period
would have been HK$108,136,000 and HK$23,841,000, respectively.

BWERRE  —FHBREEHE=ZT
—AFANA=ZtTHILSERAEEZ &
5B R AR E = A9 Bl & 85,492,000/ 7T
1%21,333,00078 T, °

EHERBYITEN @« ANEFEAEE 2
U A K 7K 52 B34 7| & 55 Bl 108,136,000
57T 12.23,841,0005% 7T, ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B SRR MR (42)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &2 —E— R4 A=+ HIL~EA

20. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(@) Aslessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 11) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from one to two years. The terms of the leases
generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions.

At 30 June 2015, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

20. REHERH

(a)

EREHBEA

AREERBLEHELHHER
REWHE(EFEN) - FHEZTHH
NF-—ERMFETE - HEGRK—
REKEPNRERE XA
REERRITHAEHABEE -

R-ZE-RFRA=+H K&
EREEEHEPRTN TIHAR
EimZ MR HEEEEEmMN A
‘EKc ZEHSBEWT

Group REHE
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—EF-HF —TmF
ANA=+H +TZH=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (&)
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 2,341 2,128
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEERF(BEEERTE) 675 1,379
3,016 3,507

—E-AERBEES | FE R AEEARAR
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &% —Z— A4 /,x A=+ H 1L/~@ A

20. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

40

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years.

At 30 June 2015, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due
as follows:

20. REHEZH(E)
(b) fEREBA

AEBERBELEHELHHEHER
ETHMRENE - ZEVEMZ
EZHEMNF—2mE -

R-ZE-RFRA=+H K&
BAR B T 51 B IR fE i 2 1 AT
HELEHEMRX BREMN Z&KE

He@EeT -

Group EE
30 June 31 December
2015 2014
—E-EHF —ZT—F
AA=+H +ZHA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (&%)
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 4,464 3,919
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEFhF(BEEERT) 8,933 11,146
13,397 15,065
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B SRR MR (42)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &2 —E— R4 A=+ HIL~EA

21.

22,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the

following transactions with related parties during the period:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

21.

BEALRS

SRS BHRREMENFL RS -
RHRGEHRIN  AEERHARBET T
SIEALRS :
AEETEEEABZMET ¢

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHIEAEA

2015 2014

—E-AF —T-mE

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEX) (CREEEZ)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Short term employee benefits RHEE &R 6,477 4,239
Equity-settled share-based payment MRS E AR D TR

expense 252 344

Post-employment benefits BERLIR BT 60 45

Total compensation paid to key XNEZEEAEZ
management personnel i< 42 1E 6,789 4,628

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and liabilities
reasonably approximated to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, trade payables and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on
quoted market prices.

The fair value of the available-for-sale investments are based on
available market prices.

—E-AERBEES | FE R AEEARAR

22.

%ﬁlﬂﬂ$ﬁ&ﬂ¥ﬁ%&%

RIBERREER - XEBRARQFEH
BEERABZREAEREEAFESE
HARE o

EEEEHEREASFRARNGEE - B
BERRTER  BREZRARERE
B e REMEBKEIA  BNESK
o FE AR SRR M IR 2
BREZAFEERERAERS T2
RRZETAEZBIHBEEE -

MHBEENBBEZAFENZTAAR
X577 GREZBFREERIN BN S
TZAIRZEEARR » TITERRBR
ThRAERTRFHE -

R RER A2 AT EETS S
B -

AHHERE 2 A FETRMSERS
Ili_ll o
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &% —Z— A4 /,x A=+ H 1L/~@ A

22. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy

of the Group's financial instruments:
Assets measured at fair value:
Group

As at 30 June 2015

22, IRTAAFERATFESRRE
B(E)

DR EEREE

TREFMEEVBETIARFEAEZ

EMARE
BAFEFEZEE
FEME
R-B—AFA=+H

Fair value measurement using

DNHEFEERAUTSE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERATHEE EATTHE
SERMIZRE BWARE BWARE
(%B1/8) (%82/8) (%£3/8) st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FEx
Available-for-sale investments:  AJftHERE ¢
Club membership debenture @ Fr&£(E45 - 1,900 - 1,900
Debt investments BRRE 5,031 - - 5,031
Financial assets at fair value BATELER AR
through profit or loss: LA -
Listed equity investments EmRARE 9,838 - - 9,838
Debt investments BBIRE 4,085 - - 4,085
18,954 1,900 - 20,854
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B SRR MR (42)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &2 —E— R4 A=+ HIL~EA

22, FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

Group (continued)

As at 31 December 2014

22, IRTAAFERATFESRE

B (&)
DFESFREREE)
BAVESNBZEE © (&)
REE (&)
R-F—mFE+—_A=1—H

Fair value measurement using

DHERTEFRAN TSR

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BRABE EANAEHE
RIS W(E W ABIE i A BUR
(B1[E) ($28) ($3E) FE
HKS’000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET FET
Available-for-sale investments: At HEKE -
Club membership debenture ~ @FT€%E &5 = 1,900 = 1,900
Debt investments EBRE 9,880 - = 9,880
Financial assets at fair value RAFEGER AR
through profit or loss: ZBEE
Listed equity investments FHRARE 9,299 - - 9,299
Debt investments BERERE 1,573 - = 1,573
20,752 1,900 - 22,652

The Company did not have any financial assets measured at fair
value as at 30 June 2015 and 31 December 2014.

Liabilities measured at fair value:

The Group and the Company did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 30 June 2015 and 31 December 2014.

During the period ended 30 June 2015, there were no transfers
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (Year ended 31 December 2014: Nil).

—E-AERBEES | FE R AEEARAR

ARABR-ZZF—RAFRNA=TBER=F
—E+ - A=1+T—HEEEAEIF
B EZMBEE -

BAVEBZEE

REBRARATNR-ZE—RESNA=T+
BR-—ZT—MNE+=-A=1+—HBIEF
AT EFE2MEaE -

HE_T-—RAFAA=THILHHE 5
1BEF2ERENVBEERMBAR
BHRAVEAECER  MEIENE
ERBARBH(BE_T—NOF+ =
A=t—HLEE : &) -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &% —Z— A4 /,x A=+ H 1L/~@ A

23.

44

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to finance the Group's operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, trade and
other payables, financial liabilities included in accruals, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, and available-for-sale
investments, which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk
and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s cash at banks and time deposits
with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group'’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate bank balances and time deposits).

23. BIEREEBRREE

AEBEz TEV BT ABREDEMRT
FRARRERERARGEE ° ILFH
BLIRAZEIERBNAAREZZBR
B - ARBREMEEMBEERA
B MERESEREERRE - 2
KEAMBWEIE - BNE SRR R
IR ~ St AR RIBZHHARE
B EERS AR5 EE R f#
HERE  WEMBEENRABTIER
XGEEERES -

AEBMBTRAEEZ T BRARBAE
Rk - SNERER - EERR - BRAER
Rk nBEcER BEFSEHILF
BEIXAfEREZRALFAR 2K
% o

=@

AEBFEET SN REF AR ZER
FEEARAKREFHRIRITRBZ IR
SRR ERTEMEFRER -

TREJNEMBREBEBHRIS T E 2B
AN AREZEBRGNCGERFE
FMERBITEHRRERERAZTZE)Y
MEESIEAIREHREE o FRIEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B SRR MR (42)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &2 —E— R4 A=+ HIL~EA

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 23. BiEKMETEEERBE(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interest rate risk (continued) F 2= 2 b (48)
Group EHE
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax
Bghim RREE A&
OR2) #, CR)
HKS$'000
TFET
As at 30 June 2015 R-ZE—RFX<A=T1H
Hong Kong dollar BIT (25) (178)
United States dollar = (25) (70)
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARB(ARK]D (25) (589)
Hong Kong dollar BIT 25 178
United States dollar E7T 25 70
RMB ARHE 25 589
As at 30 June 2014 RZE—NERA=1H
Hong Kong dollar BIT (25) (113)
United States dollar xTT (25) (29)
RMB AR (25 (588)
Hong Kong dollar BIT 25 113
United States dollar = 25 29
RMB AR 25 588
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained BRIRBB AN - H AN &R B IR AN B S A ]
profits. =72
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BTGRP EE (&)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &&= —F— A F ;5 A =+ HIE/NE A

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 23. BiEKMETEEERBGE(B)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities).

SRR

AEEEHZHEEAR - ttEREE
RERNEEEMERAZEMDEER A
INEHETRE WA R REEZRER
FASZ

TREJNEMBEMESERTE 2B
AT AEERBERREEE R 2R
Er(REREERBBERFERE)
HARBERTGEEEEE 2 HRIE
o

Group REHE
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax
ERLEH BRBL AR A
(TE2) #mn, (Rd)
% HKS'000
TET
As at 30 June 2015 R-ZE-AFXA=TH
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT HARBRE 5 4,539
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB BT 5 AREHE (5) (4,539)
As at 30 June 2014 R-Z—WFEA=1H
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT ARBRE 5 2,337
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB (/87T 5 AR EFE (5) (2,337)

BRORES M SN - N & B B A A A A )

B 486

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained
profits.

Credit risk EER
AEEFTEHRUREERTZE=F

REBGRTETRS - WRAKEZR
R RBOBMEREERRETRIZE

The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain
extent subject to certain credit verification procedures. In addition, P aXEEENELSBE T EESEZ
receivable balances are monitored by the Group’s management on BIFiE - AAEE © o AEBRERE
an ongoing basis. BeFEER RN AR AR -
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B SRR MR (42)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &2 —E— R4 A=+ HIL~EA

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, debt
investments and deposits and other receivables, mainly arises from
default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments. The Company is also
exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial guarantees.

Since the Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group had certain concentration
of credit risk as 57.4% (31 December 2014: 29.1%) of the total
trade and bills receivables of the Group were due from certain
departments/units of the Government of the HKSAR, the Group's
largest customer.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed in
note 15 to the financial statements.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - listed equity
investments in Hong Kong (note 16) as at 30 June 2015 and 31
December 2014. The Group's listed equity investments are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and are valued at quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting.
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23.

48

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 23.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the Group’s listed equity investments,
with all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

R EE B R R (&)

A E A% E R (4]

TREJNERBEMESEFTE 2B
TN RARFHERBIS R R - ARRRE
BEREE  AEEEMRARENHRSE
HREER 2 A TFESEE10%E - 15
FARE < BUREE -

Carrying Increase/
amount (decrease)

of equity in profit
investments before tax

BAREZ BB A 38
RREE (R

HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET
As at 30 June 2015 R-ZE—AF<A=1+H
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong:  E&E /2 JRAIRE
- Held-for-trading —FHEER 9,838 984
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZTE—NE+=—A=1+—H
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: ~ E&E i 2 JRAIRE
~ Held-for-trading —REEE 9,299 930

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained
profits.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to
meet its contractual payments for financial liabilities in the short
and long term. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances, and
time deposits deemed adequate by management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. Cash flows of the Group are closely monitored by senior
management on an ongoing basis.

BRORBEANISN - B AN ER B A AR A 1]

B/ 48R
&

RBESERE

AEBEZBERREREREAESIARE
NEEHEEMZMBRBERONR -
EERPECRERE  AEEERLE
FREEERRARAREAEEZERS
B MIRITHESRMERFR - WRER
RenBRBERTE  SREEE
FETVESAKBZRAERE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BB HRARIRE(AE)

For the six months ended 30 June 2015 & — =

—HFERA=ZTHIEREAR

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 23, BIEMREEREREFE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued) FREESREK(E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end REPELER - AEERBEALYE
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted IR E 2 %A &S HIE R
payments, is as follows: T
Group rEHE
As at 30 June 2015 RZZE—HFA=1+H
Lessthan 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
=F+=
REREE LR=EA AR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Trade payables FERTE SR 15,197 1,008 803 17,008
Other payables H b A~ A - 23,231 - 23,231
Financial liabilities included 5t AJEEH B
in accruals WiEaE - 5,143 = 5,143
Guarantees given to banks MAEBAEZ
for performance bonds/ ++¥ SREHELD
guarantees issued in B ERT A
relation to certain contracts fEfﬂ/ﬂ t 2 AR
undertaken by the Group 2,818 - - 2,818
18,015 29,382 803 48,200
As at 31 December 2014 RZZE—WOFE+=—HA=+—H
Lessthan 3 toless than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
=FET=
REkEE ALR=EA & A A 5T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TFiET TFrET TrE7T TrE7T
Trade payables JERE S IR 20,422 268 586 21,276
Other payables H{th FE S FRIE - 23,376 - 23,376
Financial liabilities included 5+ AJEztZ1E 2
in accruals % AarE = 4,537 = 4,537
Guarantees given to banks MAREAE 2
for performance bonds/ ++3: SREEER
guarantees issued in {REE PR TR
relation to certain contracts  $R1TIEMH 7 &R
undertaken by the Group 2,818 - - 2,818
23,240 28,181 586 52,007
—AFFHRE | Bl R R EEER AR
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For the six months ended 30 June 2015 &% —Z— A4 /,x A=+ H 1L/~@ A

23.

24.

50

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the period ended
30 June 2015 and year ended 31 December 2014.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’
equity.

APPROVAL OF THE INTERIM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The interim financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 18 August 2015.

23. MEEKREREBERBER(HE)
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Other Information

Hi & xR

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2015, the interests of the directors in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERROKEBERD 2BER KR

RZE—RFNA=1+H  FSEFHNAEAR
HiErE(Ex RESRBEEA([F %?&
HE G ]) EXVER) 2 A KA S P AR
RRREBIBEF RS KN EIEREF
E 2B MRtk iR iE LT AESEE
THEHFR HMEETF BTN AR B RH#HR
Frz T ¢

AARNEBRZHER

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FREBBRHEE - FoRESRNE

Percentage
of the
Directly Through Company'’s
beneficially controlled issued
owned corporation Total share capital
IEARRAF
Note =2 &EiB 2RITRA
Name of director EEHA Htat BEREE ZEHAF B Aot
Ng Cheung Shing REPs (a) 2,182,000 110,000,000 112,182,000 45.94
Cheung Wai Lam RIEFR 500,000 - 500,000 0.20
Leung King San, Sunny B2 1,010,000 - 1,010,000 0.41
Lee Allen F 550,000 - 550,000 0.23
4,242,000 110,000,000 114,242,000 46.78
Long positions in shares of an associated corporation: R—EEBEEERG 2HE
Percentage
Number of shares of the
BRHEE associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through corporation’s
associated with the Class of beneficially controlled issued shares
Name of director corporation Company shares owned corporation capital
G AR A
BEAQNF H# EB EBROIRE
EEnA HEEE R R ZB% B 42 3851 BEER ZEHRA Bk
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And Company’s Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
RER Technologies subsidiary deferred note (b) TEA
International RREZ BIRERRT ()
Limited i)EENG|
M RBAER A

Notes:

(a) 110,000,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao
Lien”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at general meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting
power at general meetings of Chao Lien. Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
was deemed, under the SFO, to be interested in all shares held by Chao Lien.

(b) The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien.

—RERHRE | R RGEEER AT

B3

(@)  CS.(BVI) Limitedz 2 & MEB A RBEHEHZAR
N B ([ 158 1)#5110,000,0000% 8515 - RE&
B SE £ B HEACS. (BVI) Limited 2 IR A S 1T
FERIEHITE= D2 — kA E 2R - T
c s (BVI) Limited BI| G R B IR R A G E77(E

ERITE=52 — A EIRERE - FIlt

$ETJ§ EAERIEEN  REBLEEREAR
BEFTHE 2 FTE RO P EEER -

(b)  7%3,250,000 A% 4 &% ZEHE IR IE A% 15 T A B Bt 15
ﬁ °
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Other Information (continued)

Hitp&E® (&)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2015, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share Option Scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the period were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for
the primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the period.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 (the “Adoption Date”). Pursuant to the Award
Scheme, shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) are granted
to eligible employees (including directors) of the Group until the 10th
anniversary from the Adoption Date. The Company shall also pay cash to
the appointed trustee company for its acquisition and holding upon trust
of the Awarded Shares for the benefit of these employees and directors.
The Awarded Shares will then be transferred to these employees and
directors upon vesting. The aggregate number of shares to be awarded
under the Award Scheme throughout its duration shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in the Annual Report 2014.
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Other Information (continued)

Hiv &R (A7)

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BRFIR D R BT 8 ()
The following table illustrates the number of and movements of the T%ﬁ@]zﬁﬁﬁ R 82T &8 T 2R AR ) 2 B
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme during the period. B REE
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
AEBEBROUE Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1 January during during during 30June Vesting period of fair value
of participant 2015 the period the period the period 2015 Award date Awarded Shares per share
S5 W=B-EF 87 8 gk R-2-1F SRIETY
FrE &R -A-H 2RB ERE g%k  AA=tH RitiRBAS RRRHBEH ’AT_/Kfii
BT
Directors
Bz
Ng Cheung Shing 60,000 - (60,000) - - 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 0.61
REE ‘TT)\i to 30 June 2015
EA=T=R FEIAERA-THE
—ZE-RERA=TA
Lee Allen 20,000 - (20,000) - - 23 JuIy 2008 30 June 2009 0.61
b —EIN\F t030 June 2015
tAZ+=B ZEZAERA= JrEli
“2-RERA
Lee Allen 200,000 - - - 200,000 12 August 2013 30 September 201 4 1.58
T =fF to 30 September 2018
RAT=E —S-RARAS]AE
“T-\FAA=TH
Cheung Wai Lam 400,000 - - - 400,000 14 January 2014 31 December 2014 1.88
KER —TmE to 31 December 2018
—A+mA —T-MmF
+ZA=+—H%
—T-NF
+=-A=+—-H
680,000 - (80,000 - 600,000
Other employees
Hittfgs
In aggregate 40,000 - (40,000) - - 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 0.61
o —ZT\F t0 30 June 2015
EA=H=R SREAELA-tRE
—T-REAA=TA
Inaggregate 104,000 - (88,000) (16,000) - 1 March 2010 30 April 2011 135
e —T T4 to 30 April 2015
=f—-H ZE——%@mA=1+AZ
“T-RFMA=TA
In aggregate 12,000 - - - 12,000 3 January 2011 31 December 2011 1.50
e T——F to 31 December 2015
~B=E —E i
+ZA=+—
—ZT-hF
+=-A=+—H
In aggregate 72,000 - - - 72,000 15 November 2011 30 September 2012 1.20
5 —F to 30 September 2016
+- H +EA T —FAAZTHE
—2ENA=TH
In aggregate 600,000 = (130,000) (80,000) 390,000 28 March 2013 30 April 2014 145
o =% to 30 April 2018
ZAZTN\B ZZ-_MFNA=+HZE
—2-\FMNA=+H
In aggregate 80,000 = = = 80,000 12 August 2013 30 September 2014 1.58
S T—=F to 30 September 2018
RAt=n ~“F-PWENA=+EE
“=-\FAA=TH
In aggregate - 440,000 - - 440,000 4 May 2015 30 September 2014 262
o “T-HF t0 30 September 2018
RANE —ZE-_MFAR=THZE
- \FAA=TAH
1,588,000 440,000 (338,000) (96,000) 1,594,000
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Other Information (continued)

Hitp&E® (&)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2015, the following interests of more than 5% of the issued A —

share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

FERRREMALTRARSG REEK
10z HE

Z-HFRA=TH  UTRERRFERL
BREREESZ R RPIE3B6FETFE
ZHEREMAEARRRE HITIRA M AERE

Section 336 of the SFO: 5% LA 2 kRS
Long positions: HE:
Percentage
of the Number
Number of Company’s of share
Capacity and nature ordinary issued options
Name of shareholder of the Company Notes  of interest sharesheld  share capital held
EEAT
Frts B#1T ks
ANARREE £ Wit BoRERME LERHE RABAL  BREHE
Chao Lien Technologies Limited (@) Directly beneficially owned 110,000,000 45.05 -
BRI AR R BEREREAR
C.S. (BVI) Limited (@) Through a controlled corporation 110,000,000 45.05 -
¥ Gl VNG
Puttney Investments Limited ("PIL") (b) Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 11.94 =
EREHHEAR
Hutchison International Limited ("HIL") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
BBXEH R
Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
M EHBERRR(ME]) iy Ch el VNG|
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
RIEX(EE)ARRA(RE]) iy Chg e VNG|
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CKHH") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
RINZEXERAR(RM]) iy Ch- et VNG
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 10.97 -
FFHX BRERER
Webb David Michael Directly beneficially owned 3,540,000 145 -
BEREREAR
() Through a controlled corporation 8,740,000 3.58 -
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Other Information (continued)

Hitp & ()

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)  The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” of this report.

(b) PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HWL. CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and
subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more
than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL. By
virtue of the SFO, CKHH, CKH, HWL and HIL were deemed to be interested in
the 29,148,938 shares of the Company held by PIL.

() The 8,740,000 shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited
(“PSAL"). PSAL was 100% directly owned by Mr. Webb David Michael and
accordingly, Mr. Webb David Michael is deemed to be interested in the said
shares held by PSAL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2015, no person, other than the
directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the Section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
under Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the reporting period.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of integrity, transparency and accountability. The board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and to the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as
stipulated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) during the
reporting period except on the deviations noted below.

—RERHRE | R RGEEER AT

FTERRREMALTARG REBER
0z s ()

[ES=R M RERERD
ANEBEARREBILEZE

s u%

(b) PILJIHILZZEWEBAFR - HlLﬁl\\J?%%u,%Zf%
BEWBAR - REARNMZZEWBA
EEZHMB AR BREITESRE %‘Jﬁ@iﬁAﬂ]E
ZERRERE LBB=7—REE - RBEH

DEEES - &M KT - MEMHILEARE
FAPILATHE 29,148,938 % 28 A &) J {7 A # 5 1

(©) 8,740,000/% %1% FaPreferable Situation Assets
Limited([PSAL))# %A ° PSALFAWebb David
Michael E S E BB A 2 Bz © Bt
Webb David Michael 5t A #43 ERAPSALIF B 2

AR PR R o

BEXREEIN  R-T—RFA=1H"
PRE S %%H:Xf%%ﬁﬂxf NAERAR D 2
B MR |- A RAERIN  BHEEMR
ALTRARBRAD HABRERD o B A RIBE
NG GDIFE336{F A T ik L R BOAR °

BE BEHERQRTA LHES

AR e B AR AP & A s A
B e HEARREEMF LEHES

EREAERTA
ARFBNRNEER 2 BEAGFERTE
¥En  URAKE  SEAERMELEAR
Bl - AAREER((EER DEEBROXE
AHARRZRN RIEFARRBEDEFE
Fo

BEEeR R BRTARREERIN - RARIRHR
THE-EETEBMERIMERAAE
EmRAT EmARR DS 14rE R ER
PRI EERST R Z SP AR -
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Htt &R ()

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE
(CONTINUED)

The CG code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Cheung Wai Lam has been
appointed as an executive director of the Company and the deputy
CEO of the Group since 2013. Deputy CEO mainly focuses on certain
business operations and administrative functions of the Group, assists
the Board to formulate strategies for the Group and to make sure they are
implemented successfully. With the present board structure and scope of
business, the Board considers that there is no imminent need to appoint
CEO. However, the Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the
Group's corporate governance structure and will consider whether any
changes, including the appointment of CEO, are necessary.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that its corporate governance practices are similar to those
provided in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the accounting period covered by the
interim report.

To comply with CG Code A.5.4, the Company has also adopted the Model
Code as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company
by certain employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries who are
considered to be likely to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information in relation to the Company or its securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting
process and internal controls. The audit committee comprises the three
independent non-executive directors and one executive director of
the Company. The Audit Committee has reviewed with Management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters related to the
preparation of the unaudited interim financial information for the six
months ended 30 June 2015.
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